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IG Markets Limited

Registered No 4008957

Directors’ Statutory Report

The Directors have pleasure in submutting their report together with the audited financial statements of IG Markets
Limited {the Company) for the year ended 31 May 2012

Principal activities

The Company trades as principal and market maker for foreign exchange and contracts for difference (‘CFDs’} in
both the UK and Europe The Company hedges unmatched trades including those for other Group companies, as
considered appropriate, to ensure it 1s not unacceptably exposed to matenal losses  The Company also provides an
IT platferm to other Group companies

The Company 15 a wholly-owned subsidiary of Market Data Limited and the ultimate parent company 1s |G Group
Holdings plc {IG Group Hoeldings ple together with all its subsidiary undertakings, “the Group”) The Company 15
regulated by the Financial Services Authority

Branches outside the United Kingdom

In ine with strategic objectives, the Company has branches in a number of overseas jurisdictions including Australia,
France, Germany, Italy, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, Spain and Sweden The branch i Portugal closed after year-
end on 31 July 2012 and all Portuguese operations were transferred to the branch in Spain

Results

The Company’s profit for the year, after taxation, increased by 6% (2011 12%) to £78,426,139 (2011 £74,102,884)}
Dividends

No dwidends were paid during the year (2011 nil)

Review of business and future developments

Net trading revenue reached £187,409,194 (2011 £154,726,373), an mncrease of 21%, reflecting continued growth in
many of the markets in which the Company operates The first half of the financial year saw high levels of market
volatility which resulted in record menthly revenues This was followed by a subdued third quarter, but the year
ended on a strong note with good year on year growth in the final quarter, particuiarly in April and May Significant
changes in volatility boost activity, trading revenue and new chent account openings

Net trading revenue from our UK office increased by 18% to £115,192,325 (2011 £97,262,074) UK office revenue
includes the CFD business as well as revenues earned through the provision of an IT platform and market risk
management services for the Group’s overseas subsidiaries The European offices’ net trading revenue increased by
26% to £72,216,869 (2011 £57,464,299) and active chients increase by 32%, partially offset by a 5% fall in revenue
per chent Germany and Italy were the strongest growing in the first half, but in the second half produced weaker
growth while our Iberian business accelerated to become the fastest growing of our European businesses Europe
now contributes to 39% of revenue and 15 hkely to remain an increasingly sigmficant contnbutor to revenue growth
over the next few years

Thus was the first full year of operation for our Amsterdam office, which we opened in May 2011 The business
performed well during the year and by the end of the year was achieving monthly revenues of £100k We remain
focused on evaluating opporturities to enter new markets whilst ensuring that we continue te develop our
established offices

Administrative costs increased by 34% to £90,732,366 (2011 £67,689,320) driven by an increase in irrecoverable
sales taxes of £3,121,529 to £4,479,153 (2011 £1,357,664) and employee remuneration costs of 45% to
£47,157,838 {2011 £32,499,389} The significant increase in sales taxes 15 in relation to the application of the
Group’s VAT recovery agreement with HM Revenue and Customs in prior years The increase in employee related
costs relates to an increase in both performance-related bonuses and an increase in the average number of
employees

Administrative expenses include recharges from a related party {see notes 4, 7 and 28) of £46,938,293 (2011
£34,468,632), an increase of 34%

Operating profit as a result of the above factors increased by 12% to £104,693,338 (2011 £93,806,363)




IG Markets Limited

Registered No 4008957

Directors’ Statutory Report

EBITDA 15 used as the pnmary measure to assess the performance of our business Operating profit in the Statement
of comprehensive income 1s reconciled to EBITDA in the following table

2012 2011{restated)
£ £ £ £ £ £
UK Europe Total UK Europe Total
Net trading revenue 115,192,325 72,216,869 187,409,194 97,262,074 57,464,299 154,726,373
Operating profit 61,492,502 43,200,836 104,693,338 59,276,479 35,529,884 93,806,363
Depreciation and amortisation 1,918 246,224 248,142 8,583 236,651 245,234
EBITDA 51,494,420 43,447,060 104,941,480 59,285,062 34,766,535 94,051,597

In this financial year the Company recewved no dividend (2011 £4,353,084 from its indirect subsidiary, |G Asia Pte
Limited)

Shareholders’ equity increased from £174,385,091 to £252,990,507 as at 31 May 2012

Revenue at the start of the current financial period has been lower than the same period last year, as dull markets in
this period have presented the Company’s chents with fewer trading opportunities However, under normal market
conditions, the Directors continue to expect modest growth in revenue for the year as a whole

Capital resources

The Company had significant surplus regulatory capital resources over the regulatory capital resources requirement
throughout the year

At the year-end, under FSA rules, the Company's capital resources exceeded the capital resources Pillar 1
requirement by 300 2% {2011 240 3%) Total regulatory capital resources as at 31 May 2012 were £251 1m (2011
£170 5m) An analysis of the Group’s consclidated capital resources and capital resources requirement 1s provided in
the financial statements for 1G Group Holdings plc

Directors
The Directors of the Company who held office during the year were as follows

P G Hethernngton

T A Howkins

CFHill

A R MacKay (resigned 31 July 2012}

M E F Tooth (resigned 17 August 2011)

No Director had any beneficial interest in the share capital of the Company during the year

The ultimate parent company, IG Group Holdings plc, operates long term incentive plans for management, including
the Directors of 1G Markets Lirited, further described in the financial statements of IG Group Holdings ple

Suppher payment policy and practice

It 1s the Company’s policy to agree terms of payment with suppliers when agreeing the terms for each transaction
and to abide by those terms Standard terms provide for payment of all invoices within 30 days after the date of the
invoice except where different terms have been agreed with the supplier at the outset There are 2 creditor days of
supplers’ invoices outstanding at the year-end (2011 4) for the Company
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Risk management

The principal activities of the Company outlined above give rise to exposure to financial and operational risks in the
ordinary course of business

These risks are managed on a Group-wide basis as disclosed in the financial statements of IG Group Holdings plc

Effective management of the Group’s business risks 1s crnitical to the successful defivery of its strategy It s
imperative that the Group entifies the nature and potential impact of these risks, in order to mamntain a risk-
controlled environment throughout the business The Risk Governance Framework sets out the framework for the
Board and executive committees, Non-Executive Director (NED) review, independent contro! functions and ongoing
business operations that exercise governance over risk

Risk appetite statement and Key Risk Indicators

The Group takes responsibility for risk management at all levels of the Group The risk appetite statement i1s defined
by the Board and provides guidelines for risk management throughout the business To help define the risk appetite
statement, the Group has identified three major categories of rnisk
e  Business-model risks
These are nisks actively managed and the Group is able to measure, control, and assign limits and
parameters to
®  Chent credit nisk
*  Market nsk
*  Liquidity risk
. Industry risks
These are nsks accepted as a consequence of operating in the financial services sector For these risks
the Group sets a tolerance rather than an appetite They include (but are not hmited to)
. Financial institution credit risk
¢ Operational nsk
s  Regulatory risk
+  Environmental risks These are risks over which the Group has mimimal control They include (but are
not hmited to}
e Natural disasters such as floods, earthquakes and disease epidemics
¢ Strikes and civil unrest

The Group aims to maintain a conservative risk-reward profile and have developed a Risk Appetite Statement based
on the following four key principles

*  The Board will adopt measures to ensure a low level of volatility in revenues and earnings

*  The Board will promote orderly business operations to guard against a loss of confidence by shareholders,
clhients, staff and partners

*  The Board will adopt measures to minimise regulatory risk

*  The Board will review the nisk profile of strategic projects against the risk profile of the core business

To report the performance aganst the Risk Appetite Statement, the Board has implemented a set of Key Risk
Indicators (KRIs) The Board reviews the KRIs in conjunction with the Risk Appetite Statement twice a year Taken
together, the KRIs are a balanced mix of quantitative and qualitative measures that provide an important indication
of increasing or decreasing levels of risk

The Risk Management Framework 1s designed to embed management of business nsks throughout the organisation
The effectiveness of controls i1s assessed by the Independent Control functions - namely Finance, Risk, Compliance,
Lega! and Internal Audit

The Group's system of controls 1s designed to ensure operational nsks are mitigated to the level prescribed by the
Group Risk Appetite Statement
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In addition to the Control Functions, the Group has embedded much of the risk management into underlying
business operations Heads of Department are responsible for maintenance of Risk Registers and, where necessary,
taking action to mitigate nisks and enhance the control environment The Risk and Compliance Control Functions use
these registers in co-ordinating the identificatton, measurement and monitenng of risk across the business

The principal business nsks compnise of regulatory, operational, credit and market nsk E£ach nisk and how it 1s
mitigated is outlined below

Regulatory risk 1s the nsk of non-compliance with, and future changes to, regulatory rules potentially impacting our
business in the markets in which the Group operate The Group’s ability to do business 1s dependent on obtaiming
and maintaining the necessary regulatory authorisations and remaining in compliance with these Regulatory risk is
therefore one of the most significant nisks that the Group faces as a business Regulatory nisk arises because the
Group’s products have several features which make them higher risk when compared to traditional forms of trading
They are leveraged, denivative products, are not listed on any exchange (apart from Nadex products) and are not
assignable or tradable wrth any other third party Consequently, the regulatory licenses, which enable the Group to
trade its products with retall clients, are subject to a large number of rules Comphiance with these rules 1s
fundamental to the business and the Group invests significant resources to ensure that it comphes with both the
letter and the spirit of these rules

Operational risk s the nisk of financial loss due to inadequate or failled internal processes and systems It can also
arise from human error or external events that the Group cannot influence The Group has designed and
implemented a system of internal controls to manage, rather than eliminate operational risk The reliabihity of our
chent trading platforms 1s key to delivering the Group's strategy and it invests significantly in IT infrastructure to
ensure that these platforms are resilient

To ensure that the Group provide our clients with a consistent and uninterrupted level of service, it runs a complete
disaster recovery solution, which involves a fully functional secondary site with real-time replication of all systems
across the two locations The Group supports these systems with ongoing business continuity planning and regular
testing All of the Group’s IT and data security systems conform to the 15027001 2005 nformation Security
Management System standards

Liquidity risk 1s the nsk that the Group will be unable to meet payment obligations as they fall due Liquidity nsk 1s
managed by ensurtng that the Group has sufficient iquidity to meet our broker margin requirements and other
financial habilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions The Group carried out an Individual
Liguidity Adequacy Assessment {ILAA} duning the year, and while this applies specifically to its FSA regulated entities,
it provides the context within which hquidity 1s managed throughout the business

Market risk 1s the risk that the fair value of financial assets and financial habihities will change due to movements in
market prices

Market nisk 1is managed on a real-time basis, with all chent positions monitored against market risk imits set by the
Risk Committee The Group operates within these mits by hedging the market nsk exposure as and when required
The Group does not take proprietary positions based on the expectation of market movement Our technology
enables us to monitor our market exposure against these himits constantly and in real-time if exposures exceed
these hmits, our sk management policy requires that the Group hedge the positions to bring the exposure back in
line

Credit nisk 1s the risk that a counterparty fais to perform its obligations resulting in financial loss Credit risk s
managed on a Group-wide basis The principal sources of credit nisk to the business are from financial institutions
and individuai clients

a) Financial institution credit nisk

All financial institutions with whom the Group has a relationship are subject to a credit review Exposure imits are
set and approved by the Risk Committee The Groups also maintains multiple brokers for each asset class Where
possible, the Group negotiates for our funds to receive client money protection which can reduce direct credit
exposure
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The Group is responsible, under vanous regulatory regimes, for the stewardship of client montes These
responsibiities include the appointment and penodic review of institutions where the Group deposit chient money
Group policy is that all financial institutions holding client money must have a minimum Standard and Poor's short-
term and long-term rating of A-2 and A- respectively In some operating junsdictions it can be problematic to find a
counterparty satisfying these requirements and in these cases the Group seeks to use the best avallable
counterparty

b Chient credit nisk

Chent credit nisk principally arnises when a client's total funds deposited are insufficient to cover any trading losses
ncurred In particular, chent credit sk can anse where there are significant, sudden movements in the market, due
to high general market volatility or specific volatility relating to an instrument in which the client has an open
position

The Group mitigates client credit nsk in a number of ways The Group only accept chients that pass certain suitablity
criteria, and its traiming programme aims to educate clients in all aspects of trading and nsk management and
encourages them to collateralise their accounts to an appropnate level

The Group offers a number of nsk management tools that enable clients to manage ther exposures, including
guaranteed and non-guaranteed stops, stop and order limits, the ability to hedge positions, the availabiity of liquid,
tradable contracts that are avalable when underlying markets are closed (e g 24 hour quoted indices) and full
trading cepabibity on a wide range of mobile devices

In addition, the Group manages our overall credit risk exposure through real-time monitoring of client positions via
the ‘close-out monitor’ and through the use of trered margining The Group also performs pre-deal credit checking
of every client order

Employees ‘
The Group s rapidly growmg and provides a fast-moving and successful working environment The

The Group appreciates that the quality of 1its employees 1s crucial to the success of the business and offers
competitive packages to recognise past performance and retain key talent in the future The Group pays
performance-related bonuses to most staff and makes awards under Long-Term Incentive and Value Sharing
Plans to key personnel 1G was named one of Britain's Top Employers for the fifth year running in 2012

The Group 1s keen to support the continuing personal and professional traiming and development of its staff and
encourages attendance on external and industry recognised training courses, sponsors staff to undertake a
programme of formal education and professional qualification and often offers internal secondments

The Group takes pride in being an open, non-hierarchical organisation with direct and open access amongst all
teams and at all levels The Chief Executive Officer leads a quarterly management forum which 1s recorded and
broadcast to ocur overseas offices

Equality and diversity

The Group 15 an equal opportunities employer and has extensive human resource policies in place to ensure that
employees can expect to work in an environment free from discnmination and harassment

It 15 therefore key to the Group's success that it reinforces the need to treat all employees fairly, with digmity and
without any unlawful discrimination 1G 15 committed to creating a work environment free of harassment and
bullying, where everyone 1s treated with dignity and respect

The Group gives full consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the candidate’s
particular aptitudes and abilities are consistent with adequately meeting the requirements of the job Where
existing employees become disabled, 1t1s the Group's policy to provide continuing employment wherever
practicable in the same or alternative position and to provide appropriate training to achieve this aim
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Health and safety

The Group believe that their employees are one of its most valuable assets and therefore are committed to
providing each employee with a safe and healthy working environment Health and Safety 1s an integral part of its
business and by providing key members of staff with the relevant external training and all other staff with the
relevant in-house traming this ensures comphance with all statutory health and safety requirements Details of all
incidents no matter how smalt are held on the HR database There were no reportable incidents in the year

Operations and environment

As a business which conducts nearly all of its client trades online, the Group does not see itself as a significant
emitter of environmentally harmfu! substances However, the Group understands that our operations have an
impact on the environment and take steps to manage this

Energy consumption and Carbon management

The Group have taken steps to minimise the impact of our offices on the environment These include the installation
of automated sensor lighting and air conditioning, both of which minimise energy usage when offices are not in use
With the encouragement of employees the Group has also improved our recycling facihties, including IT equipment

Subsequent events

On 17 July 2012, Andrew MacKay, announced his decision to step down from the Board with effect from 31 July
2012

Independent auditors

A resolution to re-appoint the Group's auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP will be put to shareheclders at the
forthcoming AGM on 18 October 2012

Insurance and indemnities
The Company purchases appropriate hability insurance for all Directors and officers
Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each person who was a Director at the date of approving this report 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information, being information needed by the auditors in connection with preparing their report, of which the
auditors are unaware Each Director has taken all the steps that he 1s obliged to take as a Director in order to make
him aware of any relevant audit information and to estabhish that the auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006

Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis which requires the Directers to have
a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s processes to control the financial nisks to which the Company 1s exposed,
its available hquidity, its regulatory capital position and the annual budget As a result of this review the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue m operational existence for
the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements

By order of the Board

5

P G Hetherington
Director
30 August 2012
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in accordance with
apphcable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union In preparing these financial statements, the Directors have also elected
to comply with IFRSs, 1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board {IASB} Under company law the
Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or 1oss of the company for that period In prepanng these
financial statements, the Directors are required to

¢ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
e  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

»  state whether applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the European
Union have been followed, subject to any materal departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements In preparing these financial statements, the Directors have also elected to comply with IFRSs,
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

¢  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other wregularnties

By order of the Board

V494

P G Hetherington
Director
30 August 2012




Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of IG Markets Limited

We have audited the financial statements of IG Markets Limited for the year ended 31 May 2012 which comprise i
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in !
Shareholders’ Equity, the Cash Flow Statement and the related notes The ftnancial reporting framework that has \
been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs} as 1
adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities set out on page 7, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view
Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opimion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opimions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving
these opimions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by cur prior consent in wniting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud
or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company's
creumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements {n addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial Information in the Directors’ Statutory Report to identify materal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements

« e a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 May 2012 and of its profit and cash
flows far the year then ended,

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
*  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
Opinion on other matters prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Statutory Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared 15 consistent with the financial statements




Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of IG Markets Limited

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
to you If, In our opinion

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not wisited by us, or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
* certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* we have not recewved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

‘?\&‘@»“oq

Darren Ketteringham (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

30 August 2012
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1G Markets Limited

e

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 May 2012

2012 2011
Notes 3 £
Trading revenue 216,730,813 184,703,261
Interest income on segregated client funds 3 8,029,718 6,841,384
Revenue 224,760,531 191,544,645
Interest expense on segregated client funds (13,208) (72,074)
Introducing broker commissions (29,321,619) (29,976,888}
Net operating income 195,425,704 161,495,683
i - ‘*‘:‘ P *
Analysed as P P =
‘}‘ir«"ﬁ" -J!'lpv.,‘: “}” ¥ E . P A v 1"-?“ '
Net tradmg revenue . ‘} & . oL 3 487,499 194
,, %y ’;;"Q,“ i iﬁ‘&t} hd. ) P ] N [ _’.,\,”
Other net operatmgamcorne € s s o “8,016,510
i ' il 2ok
Administrative expenses {90,732,366) (67,689,320)
Operating profit 4 104,693,338 93,806,363
Finance revenue 8 1,839,324 1,706,051
Finance costs 9 (827,358) (706,042)
Dividend ncome 10 - 4,396,450
Profit before taxation 105,705,304 99,202,822
Tax expense 11 (27,279,165) {25,099,9338)
Profit for the year 78,426,139 74,102,884

All of the Company’s revenue and profit for the year and prior year relate to continuing operations  The Company
has no items of other comprehensive income and therefore a single statement of comprehensive income has been

presented

The notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integral part of these financial statements
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IG Markets Limited

Statement of Financial Position
at 31 May 2012

2012 2011
Notes £ £
Assels
Non-current assets
N Property, plant and equipment 13 320,438 287,909
Intangible assets 14 14,131 38,414
Investment in subsidiaries 15 3,854,891 3,854,801
Deferred tax asset 11 238,600 322,775
4,429,060 4,503,989
Current assets
Trade receivables 16 206,855,647 266,982,864
Prepayments and other recewables 17 95,030,115 113,496,141
Cash and cash equivalents 18 209,445,431 98,527,899
511,335,193 479,006,904
TOTAL ASSETS 515,764,253 483,510,893
Liabities
Current habilities
Trade payables 19 104,754,103 176,145,504
Other payables 20 145,902,528 114,895,955
Income tax payable 12,117,115 18,084,343
Total abihties 262,773,746 309,125,802
Capital and reserves
Equity share capital 21 13,000,000 13,000,000
Capital reserve 22 606,723 427,446
Retained earnings 239,383,784 160,957,645
Total equity 252,990,507 174,385,091
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 515,764,253 483,510,893

The notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integral part of these financial statements

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf by

SAN

Director
P G Hetherington

30 August 2012
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IG Markets Limited

Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
for the year ended 31 May 2012

Equity shaore Caprtal Retaned Total

capttal reserve earnings equity

£ £ £ £

At 1 June 2010 13,000,000 319,717 86,854,761 100,174,478

Profit for the period - - 74,102,884 74,102,884

Other comprehensive income _ _ _ _
for the period

Total comprehensive income _ _ 74,102,884 74,102,884

for the perod

Excess of tax deduction benefit
on share-based payments - (14,476} - (14,476)
recognised directly in equity

Equity-settled employee share-

_ 12 _

based payments 2,205 122,205
Equity dividends paid - - - -
Movement in shareholders _ 107,729 74,102,884 74,210,613
equity

At 31 May 2011 13,000,000 427,446 160,957,645 174,385,091
Profit for the period - - 78,426,139 78,426,139
Other comprehensive income _ _ _ _
for the period

Total comprehensive income _ _ 78,426,139 78,426,139

for the period

Excess of tax deduction benefit
on share-based payments - 3,866 - 3,866
recognised directly in equity

Equity-settled employee share-

based payrents - 175411 = 175,411
Equity dividends paid - - - -
Movement in shareholders _ 179,277 78,426,139 78,605,416
equity

At 31 May 2012 13,000,000 606,723 239,383,784 252,990,507

The notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integral part of these financial statements
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IG Markets Limited
.- - . ]

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 May 2012

2012 2011
£ £
Operating activities Notes
Operating profit 104,693,338 93,806,363
Adjustments to reconcile operating profit to net cash flow
from operating activities
Net interest income on segregated client funds (8,016,510) {6,769,310)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4,13 226,905 214,821
Amortisation of intangible assets 4,14 24,283 30,413
Share-based payments expense 7 175,411 122,205
Non-cash foreign exchange gains in operating profit 653,927 1,325,736
Impairment/ (recovery) of trade receivables 1,635,013 {791,110)
Decrease/{increase) in trade and other recewables 79,820,108 {124,600,374)
{Decrease}/ increase in trade and other payables (42,525,134} 71,040,376
Cash generated from operations 136,687,341 34,379,120
Income taxes paid {33,190,362) {26,780,878)
Interest receved on segregated client funds 7,550,658 6,261,270
Interest paid on segregated chent funds {13,209) (99,140}
Net cash generated from operating activities 111,034,468 13,760,372
Investing activities
Interest receved 1,725,654 1,689,566
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 (259,434) {135,838}
Payments to acquire intangible assets 14 - (7,712}
Dwidends receved 10 - 43,366
Net cash generated from investing activities 1,466,220 1,589,382
Financing activities
Interest paid (827,358) (717,435)
Net cash used in financing activities {827,358) {717,435)
Net increase in cosh and cash equivalents 111,673,330 14,632,319
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 98,527,899 83,444,371
Exchange gains on cash and cash equivalents {755,798) 451,209
Net cosh and cash equivaients at the end of year 18 205,445,431 98,527,899

The notes on pages 15 to 52 are an integral part of these financial statements
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IG Markets Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 May 2012

Authorisation of financial statements and statement of compliance with IFRS

The financial statements of 1G Markets Limited for the year ended 31 May 2012 were authonised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 30 August 2012 and the statement of financial position signed on the Board’s behalf by P G
Hetherington 1G Markets Limited is incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), IFRIC Interpretations and the Companies
Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are set out in note 2

Accounting policies
Basis of preparation

The accounting policies which follow have been consistently applied in preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 May 2012 The financial statements are presented in Sterling

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

amounts reported for assets and liabilities as at the statement of financial pesition date and the amounts reported
for revenues and expenses duning the year The nature of estimates means that actual outcomes could differ from
those estimates

Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis which requires the Directors to have
a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future

Parent company and Group financial statements

The parent company throughout the year was Market Data Limited which 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of IG Group
Limited The ultimate parent company 15 IG Group Holdings plc

The Company is exempt under s400 of the Companies Act 2006 from preparing group financial statements because
they have been included in the consohdated financial statements of 1G Group Holdings plc, a company incorporated
inthe United Kingdom

The financial statements of IG Group Holdings plc and its subsidiary companies, which include the results of IG
Markets Limited, may be obtained from Cannon Bridge House, 25 Dowgate Hill, London EC4R 2YA The Group
financial statements were prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the EU as they apply to the financial statements of the group for the year ended 31 May 2012 applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency 1s Sterling  Transactions in forewgn currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the rate prevailing on the date of the transaction Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date
Non-monetary assets and liabilities carned at fair value that are dominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined Gains and losses arising on translation are
taken to the statement of comprehensive income

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidianies are stated at cost less accumnulated impairment losses
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at 31 May 2012

Accounting policies {continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impasrment
loss Cost comprises the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the
asset and includes costs directly attnibutable to making the asset capable of operating as intended

Depreciation 1s provided on all property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost, less
estimated residual value based upon estimated useful ives Estimated residual value and useful lives are reviewed
on an annual basis and residual values are based on prices prevailing at the statement of financial position date
Depreciation i1s charged on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives as follows

. Leasehold improvements - over the lease term of up to 15 years
. Office equipment, fixtures and fittings - over 5 years

. Computer and other equipment - over 2, 3 or 5 years

. Motor Vehicles - over 5 years

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
arcumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable and are written down immediately to their
recoverable amount

An item of praperty, plant and equipment 1s derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to anse from the continued use of the asset The gam or loss ansing on derecogmtion of an asset s
determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s included in the
statement of comprehensive income in the period of derecognition

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses

Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are carried initially at cost An intangible asset acquired as part
of a business combination 1s recognised outside goodwill if the asset 1s separable or anises from contractual or other
legal nghts and its fair value can be measured reliably Expenditure on internally developed intangible assets,
excluding development costs, is taken to the statement of comprehensive income in the year in which it 15 incurred
Development expenditure i1s recognised as an intangible asset only after all the following criteria are met

the project’s technical feasibiity and commercial viability can be demonstrated,

the availability of adequate technical and financial resources and an intention to complete the project have
been cenfirmed, and

. the correlation between development costs and future revenue has been established

Following wntial recogmtion, the histonical cost model s applied, with intangible assets being carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses

Intangible assets with a finite Iife are amortised on a straight ine basis over their expected useful lives, as follows

. Development costs - over 3 years
. Chent lists - sum of digits method over 3 to 5 years
. Software and licences - over the contract term of up to 5 years

The carrying value of intangible assets 1s reviewed for rmpairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may net be recoverable In addition, the carrying value of capitalised development
expenditure 1s reviewed for impairment annually before being brought into use
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Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 May 2012

Accounting policies {continued)

Impairment of assets

At least annually, or when annual impairment testing is reguired, the Directors review the carrying amounts of the
Company’s tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment foss  If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset i1s estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any} Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recaverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less selling costs and value in use In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate  Thus rate reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money as well as the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted

If the recoverable amount of an asset 15 estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset 15 reduced to 1ts recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately

An assessment 1s made at each reporting date as to whether there 1s any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased If such indication exists, the recoverable amount 15
estimated A previously recognised impairment loss 1s reversed only if there has been 3 change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised If that 1s the case
the carrying amount of the asset 1s increased to its recoverable amount That increased amount cannot exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, had no impairment loss been recogmsed for the asset in prior
years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised as income immediately

Operating leases

Leases are classified as operating leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership
of the asset Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term unless another systematic basis s more representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit

Financial instruments

The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition in accordance with the
categories outhned below and re-evaluates this designation at each financia! year end When financial instruments
are recogmised wnitially, they are measured at fair value, being the transaction price plus, in the case of financial
assets and financial habslities not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transachion costs  Financial
instruments are disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements

Fiancial assets and financial habthties at fair value through profit or loss

Financral assets and financial iabilities classified as held for trading, or designated as such on inception, are included
in this category and relate to trade recevables and trade payables as shown in the statement of financial position
Financial instruments are classified as held for trading if they are expected to settle in the short term  The Company
uses dervative financial instruments, 1n order to hedge exposures resulting from derivatives with chents, which are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedging instruments

All financial instruments at fair value through the profit and loss are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with gains or losses recognised tn the statement of comprehensive income

Determmation of fair value

Financial instruments ansing from open client positions and the Company’s hedging positions are stated at fair value
and disclosed according to the valuation hierarchy required by IFRS 7 Farr values are predominantly determined by
reference to third party market values {bid prices for long positions and offer prices for short posttions) as detailed
below

Level 1 Valued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments
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Accounting policies (continued)
Determmation of fair value

Level 2 Valued using techriques where a price 1s derived based significantly on observable market data For
example, where an active market for an identical financial instrument to the product offered by the Group to its
clients or used by the Group to hedge its market rnsk does not exist

Level 3 Valued using techmiques that incorporate information other than observable market data that 1s significant
to the overall valuation

Derecognition of financial assets and habilities

A financial asset or hability 15 generally derecognised when the contract that gives nise to it 15 settled, sold, cancelled
or expires

Financial assets

A finanaial asset 1s derecognised where the rnights to recewe cash flows from the asset have expired, the Company
retains the right to recewve cash fiows from the asset, but has assumed an oblhigation to pay them in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, or the Company has transferred its nghts to
recewve cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
{b) has nerther transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset

Where the Company has transferred its nghts to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially 2l the nsks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset Is
recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset Continuing tnvolvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the onginal carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay

Financial habilities

A financial hability 15 derecogmised when the obligation under the liability 1s discharged or cancelled or expires
Where an existing financial iability 1s replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing habihity are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification 1s treated as a
derecognition of the onginal iability and the recogmition of a new hiabihity, such that the difference in the respective
carrying amounts together with any costs or fees incurred are recognised in profit or loss

Trade recewvables and trade payables

Assets or habilities resulting from profit or losses on open positions are carried at fair value  Amounts due from/to
chents and brokers are netted against other assets and liabilities with the same counterparty where a legally
enforceable netting agreement s in place and where it 1s anticipated that assets and liabilities will be netted on
settlement

Trade receivables represent balances with counterparties and clients where the combination of cash held on
account and the valuation of financial dervative open positions result in an amount due to the Company A
provision for impairment is established where there 15 abjective evidence of non-collectability Reference 1s made to
an aged profile of debt and the provision 1s subject to management review

Trade payables represent balances with counterparties and clients where the combination of cash held on account
and the valuation of financial derivative open positions results in an amount payable by the Company

Prepayments and other receivables

Prepayments and other recewvables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, do not qualify as trading assets and have not been designated as fair value through
profit and loss  Such assets are carned at amortised cost using the effective interest method if the time value of
money 1s sigmificant Gains and losses are recogrised in iIncome when the recewvables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process A provision for impairment 15 established where there 1s objectve
evidence of non-collectability
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Accounting policies {continued)
Cash and cash equvalents

Cash compnises cash on hand and demand deposits which may be accessed without penalty Cash equivalents
comprise short-term highly hguid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value For the purposes of the cash flow statement, net cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts

The Company holds money on behalf of clients 1n accordance with the chent money rules of the UK Financial
Services Authonity (FSA) and other regulatory bodies Such monies are classified as either ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ or ‘segregated chent funds’ in accordance with the relevant regulatory requirements Segregated chent
funds comprise retail client funds held in segregated client money accounts or money market faciliies Segregated
client money accounts hold statutory trust status restnicting the Company’s ability to control the monies and
accordingly such amounts and are not held on the Company's statement of financial position

The amount of segregated client funds held at year-end is disclosed in notes 18 and 19 to the financial statements
The return recerved on managing segregated chent funds 1s included within net operating income

Title transfer funds are held by the Company under a Title Transfer Coliateral Arrangement (TTCA} by which a chent
agrees that full ownership of such monies 1s unconditionally transferred to the Company Title transfers funds are
accordingly held on the Company’s statement of financial position with a corresponding hability to clients within
trade payables

Other payables

Non trading financial habilities are recognised initially at fair value and carned at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method if the time value of money 1s significant

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, It 1s probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be
reliably estimated Where material, prowisions are discounted and recognised at the present value of expenditures
expected to settle the obligation with the unwind of the discount recognised as an interest expense

Taxation
The income tax expense represents the sum of tax currently payable and movements in deferred tax

The tax currently payable i1s based on taxable profit for the penod Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the statement of comprehensive iIncome because 1t excludes items of iIncome or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other periods and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Company’s
hability for current tax 15 calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
statement of financial position date

Deferred tax is generally accounted for on all temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of taxable profit In
principle, deferred tax habilities are recogrised for all temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
1o the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available, against which deductible temporary differences
may be utilised

Deferred tax liabilihies are recognised for taxable temporary differences anising on investments in subsidianies and
associates, except where the Company 1s able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it 1s probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each statement of financial position date and reduced to
the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered
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Accounting policies {continued)
Taxation {continued)

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply
when the related asset 1s realised or lability 1s settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the statement of financial posihion date Deferred tax i1s charged or credited in the statement of comprehensive
income, except when it relates to items credited or charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax 15 also
dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and labihities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Equity shares

Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded as the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs Equity
nstruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into  An equity
instrument Is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities

Revenue recognition

Trading revenue represents gains and losses ansing on client trading activity primarily in contracts for difference,
binary bets and the transactions undertaken to hedge the nisk associated with client trading activity Open client
and hedging positions are carried at fair market value and gains and losses ansing on this valuation are recognised in
revenue as well as gains and losses realised on positions that have closed The policies and methodologies
associated with the determination of fair value have been discussed above under Financial Instruments

Revenue Is recognised when it 1s probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured

Trading revenue 15 reported gross of introducing broker commussion as these amounts are directly inked to trading
revenue Introeducing broker commussion paid 1s disclosed as an expense in arnving at net operating income

Finance revenue and interest income on segregated client funds 1s accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effectwve interest rate applicable The effective interest rate 1s the rate which
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts over the expected Iife of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount  Interest income on segregated chent funds 1s disclosed within revenue and therefore operating
profit as this 1s consistent with the nature of the Company’s operations

Net trading revenue, disclosed on the face of the statement of comprehensive iIncome and in the notes to the
financial statements, represents trading revenue from financial instruments carned at fair value through profit and
loss and has been disclosed net of introducing broker commussion as this 1s cansistent with the management
information received by the Chief Operating Decision Maker

Dividends recevable are recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive the payment 1s established
Operating profit

Operating profit is the results of the principal activities of the Company after charging depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, amortisation of intangible assets, impairment of trade recevables, foreign exchange
differences, intercompany recharge of staff costs and other administrative expenses

Finance costs and interest expense on segregated chent funds

The interest cost recognised in the statement of comprehensive iIncome s accrued on a time basis by reference to
the principal amount charged at the effective interest rate applicable The effective interest rate 1s the rate that
exactly discounts the future expected cash flows to the carrying amount of the liability Issue costs are included in
the determmnation of the effective interest rates

Interest expense on segregated client funds 1s disclosed within operating profit as this is consistent with the nature
of the Company’s operations
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Accounting policies {continued)
Retirement benefit costs

The Company operates a defined contnbution scheme  Contributions are charged in the statement of
comprehensive iIncome as and when they become payable according to the rules of scheme

Share-based payments

The ultimate parent company, I1G Group Holdings plc, operates two employee share plans a Share Incentive Plan
(SIP) and Long-Term Incentive Plans (LTIPs) both of which are equity-settled The cost of these awards 1s measured
at fair value based on the market price of IG Group Holdings plc’s shares at the date of the grant and are recogrised
as an expense 1n the statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the vesting period based on
estimated number of shares that will eventually vest

At each statement of financial position date before vesting, the cumulative expense 1s calculated representing the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and management’s best estimate of the achievement or otherwise of
non-market conditions determining the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest The movement in
cumulative expense since the previous statement of financial position date 1s recognised in the statement of
comprehensive ncome as part of administrative expenses, with a corresponding entry i equity

Dividends

Didend distribution to the company’s shareholders is recognised as a hability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s sharehclders

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those followed in the
preparation of the Group’s Annual Report for the year ended 31 May 2012

New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company has adopted the following new or amended standards as of 1 June 2011

=  Amendment to IFRS 7 {revised) “Financial Instruments Disclosures” The amended standard introduces
additional disclosures in relation to the transfers of financial assets

*  1AS 24 (revised) "Related party disclosures”, issued in November 2009 {effective 1 January 2011) This
standard clarifies the definition of a related party and includes an explicit requirement to disclose
commitments involving related parties

The following new standards and interpretations are also effective for accounting penods beginning 1 june 2011 but
have not had a material impact on the presentation of, nor the results or financial position of the Company

¢  IFRIC 14 “Prepayments of a Minimum Funding requirement {effective January 2011}”
s [FRIC 19 “Extingwishing financial habilities with equity instruments”
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Accounting policies (continued)

Other new standards, amendments and interpretations, including those listed below, have been issued but are not
effective for accounting periods beginning 1 June 2011 and have not been early adopted by the Company

. IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”, 1ssued in November 2009, amended 2010 This standard 1s the first step in
the process to replace I1AS 39, “Financial Instruments, recognition and measurement” IFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classifying and measuring financial assets The standard ts not applicable until 1 January
2015 and has not yet been endorsed by the EU The Company has yet to assess the impact of IFRS 8

. IFRS 13 “Fair value measurement” (effective 1 January 2013)

. IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” (effective 1 January 2013)

. IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” (effective 1 January 2013)

. IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” (effective 1 January 2013}

. 1AS 19 (revised 2011) “Employee benefits” (effective 1 January 2013}

. Amendment to IFRS 7 “Financial instruments Disclosures” (effective 1 July 2013}

. 1AS 32 “Financial nstruments Presentation” (effective 1 January 2014)

. Amendment to I1AS 12,"Income taxes” on deferred tax assets or habilities on investment property {effective 1
January 2012)

. Amendment to |AS 1 “Presentation of financial statements” on OC| {effective 1 July 2012}

. IAS 28 “Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures” {effective 1 January 2013)

. Amendment to IFRS 7 "Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” {effective 1 January
2013)

The new standards and amendments hsted above are not expected to have a material impact on the Company

Revenue

Net trading revenue represents the net trading income from financial instruments carried at fair value through profit
and loss, net of introducing broker commission Revenue from external customers includes interest income on
segregated chent funds and 1s analysed as follows

2012 2011

£ £

Net trading revenue 187,409,194 154,726,373
Interest Income on segregated client funds 8,029,718 6,841,384
Revenue from external customers 195,438,512 161,567,757

In addition to the above finance revenue 1s disclosed in note 8
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Operating profit

2012
£

This 1s stated after charging/(crediting)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 226,905
Amortisation of intangible assets 24,283
Operating lease rentals 3,231,995
Impairment / (recoveries) of trade recewables 1,131,479
Foreign exchange differences (653,927)
Advertising and marketing 13,743,506

2011

214,821
30,413
2,947,548
{1,741,415)
(1,325,736)
14,582,953

All of the above, except foreign exchange differences are included in the administrative expenses on the statement
of comprehensive income are presented net of recharges from a fellow Group subsidiary Foreign exchange

differences are included in revenue

2012 2011
£ £
Administrative expenses include the following recharges from a fellow
Group subsidiary
Staff costs 37,629,125 25,742,350
Operating lease rentals 968,421 1,617,570
IT Maintenance and support 1,928,151 1,693,726
Regulatory fees 275,427 1,780,067
Other 6,133,169 3,634,919
Total expenses recharged from a fellow Group subsidiary 46,938,293 34,468,632
Refer to notes 7 and 28 for further information regarding recharged expenses included in operating profit
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fees in relation to audnt of financial statements of the Company amounting to £25,200 (2011 £17,000) are
borne by a fellow Group undertaking
2012 2011
Audit related fees £ E
ZE;:H sziy;sb:n::, ::T ;c;:l[::::tz auditor for the audit of the 6,600 6,286
f;a:;t.rgt';arytlaor:\d regulatory audit of branches of the Company pursuant 28,050 18,714
Total audit related fees 34,650 25,000
Other fees to auditors
Other services relating to taxation
- Comphance-related services 99,804 77,326
- Adwisory-related services 26,888 3,935
All other services - 4,235
Total other fees 126,692 85,496
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6. Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments represent amounts paid to Directors for services to the Group Only a proportion of these

relate to 1G Markets Limited These costs are paid by other group companies

2012 2011
£ £
Emoluments 3,759,511 1,832,540
Pension contributions 184,748 299,828
Share-based payments 1,688,950 1,495,289
No No
Members of money purchase pension scheme 4 &
2012 2011
£ £

Highest paid Director
Emoluments 1,221,707 459,894
Pension contnbuttons 62,100 58,333

7. Staff costs

The Company has direct employees in its overseas branches The average monthly number of employees during the
year was 73 (2011 67) All employees in the UK are employed by a fellow Group company The staff costs presented

below are 1n relation to direct employees only The staff costs for the year were as follows

2012 2011
£ £
Wages and salaries 7,964,948 5,701,305
Social security costs 1,487,971 983,472
Other pension costs 75,795 72,263
9,528,714 6,757,040

Wages and salaries include the following amounts in respect of performance related bonuses, excluding national

insurance, and share-based payments charged to the statement of comprehensive income

2012 2011
£ £
Performance related bonuses 5,321,574 3,430,435
Equity settled share-based payments 175,411 122,205
5,496,985 3,552,640

Staff costs recharged by the fellow group company for services provided by UK staff amounted to £37,629,125

{2011 £25,742,350)

24




IG Markets Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 May 2012

8. Finance revenue

2012 2011
£ £
Bank interest recewvable 1,184,009 373,008
Interest recewable from brokers 655,310 1,148,456
Interest recewvable from clients 5 184,587
1,839,324 1,706,051
9. Finance costs
2012 2011
£ £
Interest payable to clients 187,196 55,465
Interest payable to brokers 164,051 194,605
Bank interest payable 23,054 217,239
Interest paid to a fellow group subsidiary [note 20) 453,057 238,733
827,358 706,042
10. Dividend income
2012 2011
£ £
Dwidends recewvable from fellow group subsidiaries - 4,353,084
Other dvidends receved - 43,366
- 4,396,450
11. Taxation
{a) Tax on profit on ordinary activities
Tax charged in the statement of comprehensive Income
2012 2011
Current income tax- £ £
UK Corporation tax 27,489,603 27,186,159
Adjustment in respect of prior years {297,479} {2,454,790)
Total current income tax 27,192,124 24,691,369
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences 87,041 408,569
Tax expense in the statement of comprehensive Income 27,279,165 25,099,938
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11. Taxation [continued)
{b) Reconciliation of the total tax charge.
The rate of corporation tax in the UK changed to 24% during the year ended 31 May 2012 The tax expense in the

statement of comprehensive income for the year 1s different to the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
25 67% (2011 27 67%) The differences are reconciled below

2012 2011
£ £
Accounting profit before taxation 105,705,304 99,202,822
Accounting profit multiphed by the UK standard rate of
corporation tax at 25 67% (2011 27 67%) 27,134,552 27,446,113
Effects of
Non-taxable dividend income - (1,204,353)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 442,092 1,352,967
Tax over provided in previous years (297,479) (2,494,750}
Total tax expense reported in the statement of comprehensive income 27,279,165 25,099,937

The effective corporation tax rate s 25 8% {2011 25%)
{c) Deferred income tax assets

The deferred income tax assets included in the statement of financial position are as follows

2012 2011

£ £

Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 205,108 246,127
Share-based payments 34,492 76,648
239,600 322,775

Share-based payment awards have been charged to the statement of comprehensive income but are not allowable
as a tax expense until the awards vest The excess of tax relief in future periods over the amount charged to the
statement of comprehensive income 1s recognised as a credit directly to equity

The gross movement in the deferred income tax included in the statement of financial position 15 as follows

2012 2011

£ £

At the beginning of the year 322,775 745,819
Statement of comprehensive income (charge)/credit (87,041) (408,568)
Tax credited /(debited) directly to equity 3,866 (14,476)
239,600 322,775

26




|G Markets Limited

11.

12.

Notes to the Financial Statements
at 31 May 2012

Taxation {continued)

{d) Deferred income tax — statement of comprehensive income charge

2012 2011
£ £
The deferred income tax (charge)/credit included in the statement of
comprehensive mcome 1s made up as follows
Decelerated/(accelerated) capital allowances 41,019 {58,588)
Bad debt provision 46,022 (333,894)
Share-based payments - (16,086)
(87,041) (408,568)
The deferred tax (debited)/credited to equity during the year is as
follows
Share-based payments 3,866 {14,476)

The deferred tax asset recognised in equity relates to a deductible temporary excess of the estimated future
taxation benefit and the amounts charged or credited to date in the statement of comprehensive Income

The effect of the change in UK corporation tax to 24% from 1 April 2012 on the deferred tax assets 1s not significant
and 15 included in the movements above

(e} Factors affecting the tax charge in future years

Factors that may affect the Company’s future tax charge include the geographic location of the Company’s earmings,
the transfer pricing policies, the tax rates in those locations, changes in tax legislation, future planning opportumties
and the resolution of open tax issues

The calculation of the Company’s total tax charge involves a degree of estimation and judgement with respect of
certain items whose tax treatment cannot be finally determined until resclution has been reached with the relevant
tax authonity The Group holds tax provisions in respect of the potential tax hability that may anse on these
unresolved items, however, the amount ultimately paid may be materially lower than the amount accrued and could
therefore improve the overall profitability and cash flows of the Company in future pericds

On 1 Apnil 2012 the UK corporation tax rate was reduced from 26% to 24% Accordingly the Company’s UK earnings
will be taxable at a lower rate than has previously been applied Deferred tax assets relating to UK have accordingly
been re-measured at 24% as at 31 May 2012

Dividends

No dividends were paid in the year (2011 nil)
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13. Property, plant and equipment

Cost*

At 1 June 2010
Additions
Written off

At 31 May 2011
Additions
Written off

At 31 May 2012

Depreciation

At 1 June 2010

Provided during the year
Whnitten off

At 31 May 2011
Provided durning the year
Written off

At 31 May 2012

Net book value:
At 31 May 2012

At 31 May 2011

At 1June 2010

Office
equipment, Computer,

Leasehold  fixtures and and other Motor
improvements fittings equipment Vehicles Total
£ £ £ £ £
366,837 178,821 185,840 - 731,498
102,511 10,333 22,954 - 135,838
- - (15,779} - {15,779)
469,348 189,154 193,055 - 851,557
162,186 32,136 40,326 24,786 259,434
(141,339} - (48,490) - {189,829)
490,195 221,290 184,891 24,786 921,162
188,654 63,115 112,836 - 364,605
131,828 37,130 45,864 - 214,822
- - {15,779} - {15,779)
320,482 100,245 142,921 - 563,648
129,740 42,355 47,297 7,513 226,905
{141,339) - {48,490) - {189,829}
308,883 142,600 141,728 7,513 600,724
181,312 78,690 43,163 17,273 320,438
148,866 88,909 50,134 - 287,909
178,183 115,706 73,004 - 366,893
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14. Intangible assets

Cost

At 1 June 2010
Additions
Written off

At 31 May 2011
Additions
Written off

At 31 May 2012

Depreciation

At 1 June 2010

Provided during the year
Written off

At 31 May 2011
Provided during the year
Written off

At 31 May 2012

Net book value
At 31 May 2012

At 31 May 2011

At 1Jjune 2010

Chent Development Software

hst costs ond hcences Total

£ £ £ £
261,722 6,376 309,423 577,521
- 401 7,311 7,712

- {1,785) - {1,785)
261,722 4,992 316,734 583,448
- - {81,860) {81,860)
261,722 4,992 234,874 501,588
261,722 4,967 249,717 516,406
. 1,810 28,603 30,413

- (1,785) - {1,785}
261,722 4,992 278,320 545,034
- - 24,283 24,283

- - {81,860) (81,860)
261,722 4,992 220,743 487,457
- - 14,131 14,131

R - 38,414 38,414

- 1,409 59,706 61,115
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15. Investment in subsidiaries

At cost 2012 2011
£ £
At the beginning of the year 3,854,891 3,254,880
Additions (IG Finance Nine ttd) - 600,001
At the end of the year 3,854,891 3,854,891
The following companies are all owned directly or indirectly by 1G Markets Ltd
Proportion
Country of of voting
Name of company incorporation Holding rights held  Nature of business
Subsidiary undertakings held directly
1G Nominees ttd UK Ordinary shares 100%  Nominee company
ITS Market Solutions Ltd UK Ordinary shares 60% Software and
development sales
Blackfriars AG Germany Ordinary shares 100% Dormant
IG Finance Nine Ltd UK Ordinary shares 100% Financing
Subsidiary undertakings held indirectly
IG Asia Pte L1d Singapore Ordinary shares 100% Margin trading
16. Trade receivables
2012 2011
£ £
Amounts due from brokers 204,927,623 266,043,409
Amounts due from clients 623,780 939,455
Other amounts due from clients'” 1,308,244 -
206,859,647 266,982,864

Wother amounts due from clients represent balances that will be transferred to the Company’s own cash from
segregated client funds on the immediately following working day in accordance the UK’s Financial Services
Authority {FSA} ‘CASS’ rules and similar rules of other regulaters in whose jurisdiction the Group operates
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17. Prepayments and other receivables

2012 2011

£ £

Other debtors 1,572,943 451,711
Prepayments 1,489,508 1,166,276
Amounts due from Group companies {note 28) 91,967,664 111,878,154
95,030,115 113,496,141

The amounts due from Group companies are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand

18. Cash and cash equivalents

2012 2011

£ £
Gross cash and cash equivalents' 548,436,353 429,520,486
Less Segregated client funds™ (338,990,922) (330,992,587)
Own cash and title transfer funds'® 209,445,431 98,527,899

) Gross cash and cash equivalents includes the Company’s own cash as well as all client monies held including both
segregated chent and title transfer funds

@ Segregated chent funds compnse retail client funds heid in segregated client money accounts or money market
facilities established under the UK’s Financial Services Authority (FSA) ‘CASS’ rules and similar rules of other
regulators in whose jurisdiction the Company operates  Such monies are not included in the Company’s Statement
of Financial Position

®M'tle transfer funds are held by the Company under a Title Transfer Collateral Arrangement {(TTCA) by which a
chent agrees that full ownership of such monies 1s unconditionally transferred to the Company

Cash and cash equivalents are deposited for varying periods of between one day and three months depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates

Undrawn committed Group borrowing facilities amounted to £180 Om (2011 £180 Om) at year end

19. Trade payables

2012 2011

£ £

{restated)

Amounts due to title transfer chents 59,852,228 49,205,239

h fell

intercompany hedging relationship with fellow group subsidiaries 40,078,564 116,120,384
{note 28)

Other amounts due to clients™ - 7,218,534

Other trade payables 4,823,311 3,601,347

104,754,103 176,145,504

“other amounts due to clients represent balances that will be transferred from the Company’s own cash into
segregated client funds on the mmediately following working day in accordance with the UK’s Financial Services
Authornity (FSA) "CASS’ rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose junsdiction the Group operates
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20. Other payables

2012 2011
£ £
Accruals and deferred income 12,608,866 10,344,216
Other taxes and social security 130,609 164,764
Amounts due to Group compantes (note 28) 133,163,053 104,386,975
145,902,528 114,895,955
21. Equity share capital

2012 2011
£ £

Allotted, called up and fully pawd
13,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each 13,000,000 13,000,000

22. Other reserves

Retained earmings
Retained earmings include profit and losses charged to the statement of comprehensive income
Capital reserve

The caprtal reserve represents the equity contribution by the ultimate parent company, IG Group Holdings plc, for
the equity-settled share-based payments made by IG Group Holdings plc to employees of the Company Capital
reserves Include a credit for the excess of the tax deduction for employee share-based payments over the amounts
charged to the statement of comprehensive income

23. Employee share plans

The ultimate holding company, IG Holdings plc, operates three employee share plans for the employees of IG
Markets Limited, a Share Incentive Plan {SIP), a Value-Sharing Plan (VSP) and a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP} all of
which are equity-settled The entries in the financial statements in respect of share-based payments are as follows

2012 2011

£ £

Equity settied share-based payment schemes 175,411 122,205
Expense recharged from fellow subsidiaries 2,364,841 1,694,045
Expense recognised in statement of comprehensive income 2,540,252 1,816,250
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23. Employee share plans (continued)

Value Sharing Plan (VSP)

The V5P award was introduced during the year ended 31 May 2011 onwards to replace the LTIP award VSP awards
are conditional awards made available to Executwve Directars and other semor staff  The Remuneration Committee
has responsibility for agreeing any awards under the plan and for setting the policy for the way in which the plan
should be operated, including agreeing performance targets and which employees should be invited to participate
Participants do not pay to receive awards or to receive release of shares The VSP performance targets vest after 3
years with a pre-defined number of shares allocated, for each £10m of surplus shareholder value created over the
three year period above a hurdle Half of the shares vest after 3 years and can be exercised at that date, with the
remaining half being deferred for a further year, conditional upon continued employment at the vesting date

The maximum number of V5P shares that vest based on the awards made are

Share Expected At the Awarded tapsed Exercised At the
Award price at vesting start of during during during end of

dote award date the yeor the year the year the year the year

No No No No No

29 Oct 10 528 5p 31.Jul 2013 29,378 - - - 29,378
29 Oct 10 5285p 31Jul2014 29,378 - - - 29,378
20 July 2011 4500p 31Jul2014 - 66,840 - - 66,840
20 july 2011 450 0p 31 Jul 2015 - 66,839 - - 66,839
58,756 133,679 - - 192,435

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

LTIP awards were made avallable to Executive Directors and other senior staff in the years ended 31 May 2005 to 31
May 2010 which were then replaced by the VSP award

LTIP awards allowed the award of nil cost or nominal cost shares which were legally classified as options and vested
when specific performance targets were achieved, conditional upon continued employment at the vesting date For
each award a minimum performance target has to be achieved before any shares vest and the awards vest fully
once the maximum performance target 1s achieved

Share Expected At the Awarded Lapsed Exercised At the
Award price ot vesting start of during during during end of

date aword date the year the year the yeor the yeor the yeoar

No No No No No

21 Aug 07 304 Op 21 Aug 10 48,331 - - (48,331) -
29 Oct 10 528 5p 31Jul 2013 35,039 - - - 39,039
87,370 - - {48,331) 39,039
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Fair value of equity-settled awards

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments to employees 1s determined at the grant date The
weighted average fair value of the equity-settled awards granted duning the year was £231,474 (2011 £217,840)

For VSP awards made under the growth in profit before tax critena, the fair value s determined to be the share
price at the date of grant after a deduction for the expected present value of future dividends, over the vesting
perod For VSP awards made under the Total Shareholder Return {TSR) criteria, fair value 15 calculated using a

Monte-Carlo pricing model Please refer to the Director’'s Remuneration report for more information

The inputs below were used to deterrmine the fair value of the VSP award 1ssued on 20 July 2011

Share price at grant date {pence)

3 month average market capitalisation at award date (Em)
Expected Iife of awards {years)

Risk-free sterling interest rate (%)

IG expected volatihty (%}

Benchmark index expected volatility {%}

Expected dridend yield (%)

The weighted average fair values per award granted are as follows

Year ended 31 May 2012

Year ended 31 May 2011

Obligations under leases

Operating lease agreements where the Company is lessee

Lapsed
during the

Exercised
during
year

450 00

£1,671m

27
112
47
33
42

the

end of the
yeor

283 83p

278 25p

300 11p

The Company has entered into commercial leases on certain properties The lessee has options of renewal on each
of these leases with a notice period of three months There were no restrictions placed upon the lease by entenng

into these leases Future mimimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Future mimmum payments due

Not later than one year

After one year but not more than five years

After more than five years

2012 2011

£ £
524,846 518,176
1,357,538 1,882,988
6,926 117,180
1,889,310 2,518,344
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Litigation
The Company received a claim issued on 11" November 2010 and in relation to the insolvency of Echelon Wealth
Management Limited (Echelon), a former client of the Company This fitigation 1s on-going

Three former chents of Echelon (which went into hquidation in October 2008) namely (1} Stokors SA {“Stokors”), {u)
Mr Lucien Selce (“Selce”}, and (1) Phoenicia Asset Management (Holding) SAL (“Phoenicia”) are seeking to recover
damages from the Company

The damages sought are made up of two parts, firstly approximately €12 million which the three Claimants had on
deposit with Echelon at the time of its hquidation, and secondly a claim for lost profits which Stokors and Phoenicia
claim they would have made had they not lost these monies deposited by them with Echelon at the time it
collapsed On 3™ May 2012 Stokors and Phoenicia amended their Claim in relation to alleged lost profits seeking to
recover the sums of €37,706,584 and €19,265,572 respectively {calculated to 25 January 2012) together with
continuing alleged daily losses of €31,766 and €16,230 per day respectively which they claim equates to a daily rate
of return of 0 4% (or 146% per annum)} The Company Is Investigating the legality of the Claimants’ activities giving
nse to these alleged rates of return

On the basis of legal and expert advice receved, the Company continues to view the claim as speculative No
provision has therefore been made in the Company statement of financial position as at 31 May 2012 in relation to
this matter

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the year-end but not yet incurred 15 as follows

2012 2011
£ £
Property, plant and equipment 532 55,066

Capital commitments for property, plant and equipment at 31 May 2012 primanly relate to the costs associated with
the fit out of the Company’'s European offices

Transactions with Directors

The Directors of IG Markets Limited held shares of the ultimate parent company, !G Group Holdings plc, as disclosed
in the Directors’ report The Company had no other transactions with its Directors other than in relation to the
management of the Company

Related party transactions

The Directors are considered to be the key management personnel of the Group 1n accordance with I1AS 24 The
total compensation for key management personnel was as follows

2012 2011

£ £

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 3,759,511 1,832,540
Post-employment benefits 184,748 299,828
Share-based payments 1,688,950 1,495,289
5,633,209 3,627,657

Compensation for key management personnel represents amounts paid to Directors for services to the Group Only
a portion of these relate to services to |G Markets Limited
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28. Related party transactions {continued)

During the year the Company entered into transactions, in the ordinary course of business, with other related
parties Transactions entered into, and trading balances outstanding at 31 May with other related parties, are as

foltows
Expenses Expenses Amounts Amounts
recharged recharged owed by owed to
to related from related related Related
party party party Party
Related party £ 3 £ £
Parent and ultimate controlling party
2012 - - 26,229,422 -
2011 - - 1,730,277 -
Fellow Group subsidianies
2012 - 46,938,293 65,738,242 173,241,617
|
2011 - 34,468,632 110,147,877 220,507,359
Total Group
2012 - 46,938,293 91,967,664 173,241,617
2011 - 34,468,632 111,878,154 220,507,359

support, regulatory fees and various other casts Refer to notes 4 and 7 for infformation regarding these expenses

Included within amounts owed to related parties are trade payables £40,078,564 in relation to an intercompany
hedging relationship with a fellow Group subsidiary and £133,163,053 included within other payables Refer to
notes 19 and 20 respectively

|
|
i Included within amounts recharged from related parties are staff costs, oparating lease rentals, IT Mamntenance and

|
i Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
|
|

Expenses recharges between related parties are made at arm’s length prices During the year ended 31 May 2012,
the Company has not made any provision for doubtful debts relating to amounts owed by related parties {2011 ril)

Refer to note 9 for information regarding interest paid on amounts owed to related parties

29. Financial instruments

Accounting classifications and fair values

|

|

|

| The table below sets out the classification of each class of financial assets and liabilities and their fair values

i {excluding accrued interest) The Company considers the carrying value of all financial assets and habilihies to be a
i reasonable approximation of fair value and represents the Company’s maximum credit exposure without taking

| account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements

|
|
|

‘Cash and cash equivalents’ represent cash held on demand and on deposit with financial institutions

‘Trade recewables - due from brokers’ represent balances with brokers where the combination of cash held on
account {disclosed as loans and receivables) and the valuation of financial derivative open posttions {disclosed as
held for trading} results in an amount due to the Company These positions are held to hedge client market
exposures and hence are considered to be held for trading and are accordingly accounted for at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL) These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard
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margin trading activities and are reported net in the statement of financial position as the Company has both the
legal nght and intention to settle on a net basis

29. Financial instruments (continued)

‘Trade receivables - due from clients’ represent balances owed to the Company by clients Open chient positions
that are neither past due nor impaired are disclosed as held for trading, while recewvables in respect of closed client
positions are disclosed as loans and recewvables

Accounting classifications and fair values (continued)

‘Trade payables - due to clients’ represent balances where the combination of client cash held on account {disclosed
as loans and recewvables) and the valuation of financial derivative open positions (disclosed as held for trading)
results 1n an amount payable by the Company Trade payables — due to clients are reported net in the Company’s
Statement of Financial Position as the Company adjusts the gross amount payable to clients {1 ¢ monies held on
behalf of chents) for profits or losses incurred on a daily basis consistent with the legal right and intention to settle
on a net basis

Classification of financial instruments

FVTPL- Other Total
Held for Loans and amortised carrying Fair
trading receivables cost amount value
As at 31 May 2012 £ £ £ £ £
Financial ossets
Cash and cash equivalents - 209,445,431 - 209,445,431 209,445,431
Trade recewables — due from brokers
Non-exchange traded instruments {6,244,387) 173,639,774 - 167,395,387 167,395,387
Exchange-traded instruments {4,598,722) 42,130,958 - 37,532,236 37,532,236
Total trade receivables — due from brokers (10,843,109) 215,770,732 - 204,927,623 204,927,623
Trade recevables — due from clients - 623,780 - 623,780 623,780
Ilr:t:fsrecewables - other amounts due from A 1,308,244 ) 1,308,244 1,308,244
- 427,148,187 - 416,305,078 416,305,078

Financial habiitties
Trade payables — due to title transfer clients - - [59,852,228) (59,852,228) (59,852,228)

- - {59,852,228) (59,852,228) (59,852,228)

Excluded from the financial assets classified as ‘loans and receivables’ are amounts due from Group companies
£91,967,664 (2011 £111,878,154) Refer to notes 17 and 28

Excluded from the financial liabihties classified as ‘other amortised ¢cost’ are amounts due to Group companies
£173,241,617 (2011 £104,386,975) Refer to notes 19, 20 and 28
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29. Financial instruments {continued)

FVTPL- Other Total
Held for Loans and amortised carrying Fair
trading receivables cost amount value
As at 31 May 2011 £ £ £ £ £
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 98,527,899 - 98,527,899 98,527,899
Trade recevables — due from brokers
Non-exchange traded instruments (5,607,485%) 236,877,324 - 231,269,839 231,269,839
Exchange-traded instruments 551,431 34,222,139 - 34,773,570 34,773,570
Total trade recewvables — due from brokers (5,056,054) 271,099,463 - 266,043,409 266,043,409
Trade recewables — due from chents - 939,455 - 939,455 939,455
(5,056,054) 370,566,817 - 365,510,763 365,510,763
Financral habilities

Trade payables — due to title transfer
chents

Trade payables — other amounts due to
chents

. - {49,205,239) {49,205,239)  (49,205,239)

- (7,218,534) (7,218,534) (7,218,534)

- - (56,423,773) (56,423,773) (56,423,773)

Financial instrument valuation hierarchy

The hierarchy of the Company’s financial instruments carned at fair value is as follows

Levef 1 tevet 27 tevel 3¥  Total foir volue
As at 31 May 2012 £ £ £ £
Financiai assets
Trade receivables — due from brokers {4,598,722) {6,244,387) - (10,843,109)

al Vatued using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical financial instruments This category

includes the Company’s exchange-traded cpen hedging positions

@ Valued using techniques where a price 1s derived based significantly on observable market data For

example, where an active market for an identical financial instrument to the product offered by the Company to its
chents or used by the Company to hedge its market risk does not exist

@ Valued using techniques that incorporate information other than observable market data that 1s significant

to the overall valuation

The amounts due from brokers disclosed in the table above represents the fair value of the Company’s open hedging
positions The fair value cf the Company’s open hedging position vartes significantly from the fair value of the
related client positions as a result of the Company’s settlement terms with its brokers whereby hedging positions are
settled and re-opened on a more frequent basis than the underlying chent pesition

There have been no changes in the valuation techniques for any of the Company’s financial instruments held at fair
value in the period Dunng the year ended 31 May 2012, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 farr
value measurements, and no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurements
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29. Financial instruments (continued)

30.

Reconcihation of the movement in Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy

Gamns or
At 1 June losses in Closed At 31 May
2011 revenue'™ positions 2 Transfers 2012%
£ £ £ £ £
Financial hobitties
Trade payables - due to chents - 9,168,274 (9,168,274) - -

hl Disclosed in trading revenue in the statement of comprehensive iIncome  This represents client positions

that have closed in the peniod as well those open at the period end

@ Value of client positions that have settled in the period

) Value of open chent positions at the period end disclosed in trading revenue in the statement of

comprehenswe income

The impact cf a reasonably possible alternative valuation assumption on the valuation of trade payables - due to
clients reported within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy 15 not significant

Items of income, expense, gains or losses

Gains and losses ansing from financial assets and habilities classified as held for trading amounted to net gains of
£187,409,194 (2011 £154,726,373)

Finance revenue totalled £1,839,324 (2011 £1,706,051) The entire amount represents interest income on financial
assets not at fair value through profit or loss and includes interest receivable in respect of non-segregated client
balances, part of which is held with brokers

Finance costs totalled £827,358 (2011 £706,042) and the entire amount represents interest expense on financial
liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss

Financial nsk management

The pnincipal actrvities of the Company outlined i1n the Directors’ Report give rise to exposure to financial risks in the
ordinary course of business Risk management is performed on a Group-wide basis The following risk management
disclosure 1s made with regards to the Group

The Group’s Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process {ICAAP) provides an on-going assessment of the risks the
Group believes have the potential to have a significant detnmental impact on its financial performance and future
prospects and describes how the Group mitigates these nsks subject to the Group’s risk appetite

The Board sets the strategy and policies for the management of these risks and delegates the management and
monitoning of these risks to the Risk and Audit Commuttees

Financial risks ansing from financial instruments are analysed into market, credit, concentration and iiquidity risks,
and these are discussed below

(1) Market risk

Market risk 1s the risk that changes in market prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of
financial instruments This 1s analysed into market price, currency and interest rate nisk components

The Company’s market risk 1s managed under the ‘Market Risk Policy’ on a group-wide basis and exposure to
market risk at any point In time depends primanly on short-term market conditions and the levels of chent activity
The Company utilises market position imits for “operational efficiency” and does not take proprietary positions
based on an expectation of market movements As a result not all net client exposures are hedged and the Company
may have a residual net position in any of the financial markets in which it offers products up to the market risk

it
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Financial risk management (continued)
(1) Market risk {continued)

The Group’s Market Risk Policy incorporates a methodology for setting market position Iimits, consistent with the
Group’s nsk appetite, for each financial market in which the Group’s chents can trade, as well as certain markets
which the Board consider to be correlated These himits are determined with reference to the iquidity and volatility
of the underlying financial product or asset class and represent the maximum long and short client exposure that
the Group will hold without hedging the net clhient exposure

The Group’s real-time market position monitonng system allows it to monitor its market exposure against these
limits continuously If exposures exceed these imits, the policy requires that hedging 1s undertaken to bring the
exposure back within the defined hmit

There is a sigmificant level of ‘natural’ hedging anising from the Group’s global client base pursuing varying trading
strategtes which resuits in a significant portfolio hedging effect This reduces the Group’s net market exposure prior
to the Group hedging any residual net client exposures, as well as mimimising concentration risk within the market
nisk portfolio

Where the Group has residual positions in markets for which it has not been possible or cost-effective to hedge, the
Risk Committee determines the appropriate action and reviews these exposures regularly, subject to the risk
management framework approved by the Board

Binary bets are typically difficult or not cost-effective to hedge and there 15 often no direct underlying market which
¢an be utilised in setting the price which the Group quotes The Group normally undertakes no hedging for these
markets, but can hedge specific positions if considered necessary The Group aims to reduce the volatility of revenue
from these markets by offering a large number of different betting opportunities, the results of which should, to
some extent, offset each other rrespective of the underlying market cutcome The overwhelmingly short-term
nature of these bets means that risk on these markets at any point in time 15 not considered to be significant

a) Market price rnisk

Thus 15 the nisk that the far value of a financiai instrument fluctuates as a result of changes in market prices other
than due to the effect of currency or interest rate risks

Equity market price risk

The most significant market risk faced by the Company 1s on equity positions including shares and indices which are
highly correlated and managed on a portfolio basis The equity exposure at the year-end and details of the exposure
limit at the year-end and for the year then ended 15 as follows

2012 2011
£000 £000
Equity exposure at year-end 16,535 14,750*
Equity exposure mit at year-end 16,500 16,500
Average equity exposure limit for the year 16,500 16,500

*The average equity exposure for the year ended 31 May 2011 has been disclosed as this 1s considered more
representative of the Company’s typical exposure than the year-end equity exposure of £473,000

As noted earlier in, the Group’s market risk policy requires that when the exposure exceeds the exposure hmit
hedging 1s undertaken to bring the exposure back within that imit as soon as practical
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Financial risk management (continued)
{1) Market nsk {continued}
The Company has no significant concentration of market risk

No sensitivity analysis 1s presented for equity market price nisk as the impact of reasonably possible market
movements on the Group’s revenue and equity are not significant being below the Company’s average daily revenue
from financial instruments (2012 £715,302, 2011 £604,400) Changes in risk vanables have no direct impact on the
Company's equity as the Company has no financial instruments classified as available for sale, or designated n
hedging relationships

Other market price risk:

The Company alsc has market price nisk as result of its trading activities (offening bets and contracts for difference
(CFDs} on interest rate derivatives and commaodities) which i1s hedged as part of the overall market risk
management The exposure 1s monitored on a Group-wide basis and 1s hedged using exchange-traded futures and
options Exposure imits are set by the Risk Committee for each product, and alse for groups of products where it s
considered that their price movements are likely to be positively correlated

The exposure to interest rate derivatives and commaodities at the year-end are as follows

2012 2011
£000 £000
Interest rate dervatives 11,278 21,332
Commodities 6,717 10,261

No sensitivity analysis 1s presented for other market price nsk as the impact of reasonably possible market
movements on the Company’s revenue are not significant Changes in nsk vanables have no direct impact on the
Company’s equity as the Company has no financial instruments designated 1n hedging relationships

b) Foreign currency risk
The Group 15 exposed to two sources of foreign currency nisk
1) Translational foreign currency nsk

Translation exposures anse from financial and non-financial items held by an entity with a functional currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency The functional currency of each company in the Group 1s that
denominated by the country of incorporation The Group does not hedge translational exposures as they do not
have a significant impact on the Group’s capital resources

u) Transactional foreign currency risk

Transactional foreign currency exposures represent financial assets or liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the transacting entity  Transaction exposures anse i the normal course of bustness
and the management of this nsk forms part of the rnisk policies outlined above Limits on the exposures which the
Group will accept in each currency are set by the Risk Committee and the Group hedges its exposures as necessary
with market counterparties Foreign currency risk 1s managed on a group-wide basis, while the Company’s exposure
to foreign currency risk 1s not considered by the Directors to be significant
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Financial risk management (continued)
(1) Market risk {continued)

The Group moniters transactional fereign currency risks including currency statement of financial position
exposures, equity, commodity, interest and other positions denorminated in foreign currencies and bets and trades
on foreign currencies The Company’s net exposure to forergn exchange risk based on notional amounts at each
year-end was as follows

2012 2011

£000 £000
US Dollar 2,773 (212)
Euro (8,037) 351
Australian Dollar (5,348) {1,134)
Yen 39 5,711
QOther 4,046 4,593

No sensitivity analysis 1s presented for foreign exchange risk as the impact of reasonably possible market
moavements on the Company’s revenue are not significant Changes in nisk variables have no direct impact on the
Company’s equity as the Company has no financial instruments designated in hedging relationships

¢) Non-trading interest rate risk

The Company also has interest rate nsk relating to financial instruments not held at fawr value through profe and
loss These exposures are not hedged

The interest rate risk profile of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities as at 31 May each year was as follows

2012 2011
£ £

Floating rate
Cash and cash equivalents 209,445,431 98,527,899
Trade recevables 206,859,647 266,982,864
Trade payables (104,754,103 (176,145,504)
311,550,975 189,365,259

All balances presented in the table above are repayable within one year

Interest on financial instruments classified as floating rate i1s re-priced at intervals of less than one year Trade
recewvables and payables include chient and broker balances upon which mterest 1s paid or received based upon
market rates Cash and cash equivalents includes chent money equivalent to the amount included within trade
payables

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

A non-traded interest rate risk sensitivity analysis has been performed on net interest income on segregated client
funds, based on the value of client funds held at the year-end, on the basis of a 0 25% (2011 0 25%) per annum fall
and a 0 75% (2011 0 75%) rnise in interest rates, at the beginning of the year, as these are considered ‘reasonably
possible’ The impact of such a fall in interest rates would reduce net interest income on segregated client funds by
approximately £2 0 milhon (2011 £1 6 million) per annum The impact of such a rise in interest rates would
Increase net interest income on segregated client funds by approximately £5 5 millon (2011 £5 3 million} per
annum Changes in nsk vaniables have no direct impact on the Company’s equity as the Company has no financial
mstruments designated in hedging relationships
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Financial risk management (continued)
{n} Credit nisk

Credit risk 1s the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation The Company’s credit risk 1s managed on a group-wide basis

The Company’s prinapal sources of credit risk are financial institution and client credit risk
a) Financial institution credit risk
Financial institution credit nisk 1s managed in accordance with the Group's ‘Counterparty Credit Management Policy’

Financial institutional counterparttes are subject to a credit review when a new relationship 15 entered into and this
15 updated semi-annually {or more frequently as required e g on change in the financial institution’s corporate
structure or a downgrading of its credit rating} Proposed maximum exposure imits for these financial institutions
are then reviewed and approved by the Risk Committee

As part of its management of concentration risk, the Group 15 also committed to maintaining multiple brokers for
each asset class Where possible, the Group negotiates for its funds to receve client money protection which can
reduce ¢credit exposure

In respect of financial institution credit risk, the following key metrics are monitored on a daily basis
=  Balances held with each counterparty group, against limits approved by the Risk Committee
*  Any change in short- and long-term credit rating

*  Any change in credit defautt swap (CDS) price

The Group 1s responsible under various regulatory regimes for the stewardship of chent monies These
responsibilities are defined in the Group’s Counterparty Credit Management Policy and include the appointment of
and penodic review of institutions with which chent money I1s deposited The Group's policy is that all financial
institutional counterparties holding client money accounts must have mimimum Standard and Poor’s short- and
long-term ratings of A-2 and A- respectively These are also the target mimimum ratings for the Group’s own bank
accounts held with financial institutions, although in some operating junisdictions where accounts are maintained to
provide local banking faciiities for clients 1t can be problematic to find a banking counterparty satisfying these
mintmum ratings requirements Balances held with such counterparties are therefore mimmised The Group also
actively manages the credit exposure to each of its broking counterparties by typically keeping the minimum
required balances at each broker

In addition, the majority of deposits are made on an overnight or breakable term basis which enables the Group to
react immediately to any downgrading of credit rating or matenal widening of CDS spreads, and deposits of an
unbreakable nature or requiring notice are only held with a subset of counterparties which have been approved by
the Risk Committee

b) Chent credit risk

The Group operates a real-time mark-to-market trading platform with chent profits and losses being credited and
debited automatically to their account

Clent credit risk principally arises when a client’s total funds deposited with the Group are insufficient to cover any
trading losses incurred In addition, a small number of clients are granted credit imits to cover open losses and
margin requirements as described below

In particular, chent credit risk can anise where there are significant, sudden movements in the market 1 e due to high
general market volatility or specific volatility relating to an indmidual financial instrument in which the client has an
open position Credit risk 1s mitigated in part through our chient sutability cnitena supported by an extensive
tramning program which aims to educate chients in all aspects of trading and nsk management and encourage them
to collateralise their accounts at an appropriate level

The principal types of chient credit risk exposure are managed under the Group's ‘Client Credit Management Policy’
and depend on the type of account and any credit offered to clients as follows
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Financial risk management (continued)
b) Chent credit risk {continued)

Clients subject to the Group’s ‘close-out momitor’

The Group’s management of chent credit risk is supported by a significantly automated liguidation process, the
‘close-out monitor’ {COM), whereby accounts which have broken the hguidation threshold are automatically
dentified If the margin of a chient which 1s subject to COM hguidation process is eroded, the client 15 requested to
deposit additional funds up to at least the required margin level and will aiso be restricted from increasing their
market positions If subsequently, the client’s intra-day losses increase such that their total equity falls below the
specified hiquidation level, positions will be hquidated immediately This results in significantly improved client
hiquidation times and reduced credit risk exposure for the Group

In addition a subset of clients has what are known as “Limited Risk” accounts For such accounts a level 1s set in
advance (the “guaranteed stop” level} at which the deal will be closed, meaning a maximum client loss can be
calculated at the opening of the trade Clients placing trades with guaranteed stop levels pay a small premium on
each transaction The maximum loss 15 then the amount the client is required to deposit to open the trade, meaning
that in most circumstances the client can never lose more than their initial margin deposit  Although no longer
offered to new clients, the Group still has a sigmificant number of clients with this type of account  This type of
account results in the transfer of an element of market risk to the Group, which 1s managed under the Group’s
Market Risk Palicy, and this type of trade 1s not available on all products  Clients with any type of account may still
choose to use guaranteed stops where available

The majority of chent positions are monitored on the Group’s real-time COM system or are mited risk accounts
with guaranteed ‘stop-losses’ As at 31 May 2012, 98 92% (2011 98 8%) of financial client accounts are subject to
the automatic COM procedure or are ‘limited risk’ accounts

Credit accounts

Chents holding other types of accounts are permitted to deal in circumstances where they may be capable of
suffering losses greater than the funds they have deposited on their account, or in imited circumstances are allowed
credit The Group has a formal credit policy which determines the financial and expenence critenia which a chent
must satisfy before being given an account which exposes the Group to credit risk, including trading imits for each
client and strict margining rules

The Group may offer credit limits with the result any ‘open loss’ can be paid subject to agreed credit terms These
accounts typically only create a credit exposure when the chient’s loss exceeds their imibal margin deposit

In addition to the waver of payment of open losses on a trade, the Group may also offer chents credit in respect of
their intial margin - This 1s @ permanent waving of imitial margin requirements while the imit 1s active on the
account subject to the credit hmit

Credit limits are only granted following provisian by the client of evidence of their available financial resources and
credit accounts hmits are continucusly reviewed by the Group’s Credit Department Credit accounts are small in
number, are not actively promoted and in general they are not made avallable to new chents

Risk-based tiered margmns

The Group applies a tiered-margin requirement for equities and other instruments with risk-adjusted margin
requirements dependent on several factors including the volatiity and hquidity of the underlying instrument

This has resulted in potential margin requirement of up to 90% of the value of the notional chent position for large
client posttions but a reduced margin requirement for smaller client positions

These tiered margins, in addition to the COM discussed earlier, contribute to the further miigation of the Group's
chent counterparty credit rnisk exposure
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b} Client credit risk {continued)
Management of chent collateral

The Group also accepts non-cash collateral from a small number of clients in the form of shares or other securities
which mitigate the Group’s credit nsk Clients retain title to the secunties lodged whilst their trading account 1s
operating normally, but are required to sign a collateral agreement which will altow the Group to take title and sell
the securities in the event of the chient defaulting on any margin obligations

Securities accepted as collateral are normally restricted to FTSE 100 stocks, UK Gits or other high quality bonds The
collateral value assigned to the chent account is updated daily, and each security 1s assigned a ‘haircut’ value e g a
client 1s typically allowed to use 80% of a FTSE 100 current market value and 90-95% of a UK Gilt market value

Chents are only permitted to use non-cash collateral value to cover intial margin requirements, running losses on
open positions are not covered under the agreement and are required to be covered by cash as part of the normal
MAargining process

The fair value of collateral held at 31 May 2012 against amounts due from clients was £3,864,318 (2011
£5,788,674}

The following tables present further detail on the Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit nsk External credit
ratings (Standard and Poor’s long-term ratings or equivalent) are available for exposures to brokers and banks, and
these are shown No external credit rating of clients and certain of the Group's sport related brokers is available and
therefore the balances are classified as unrated

Amounts due from chents are considered past due from the date that positions are ctosed and are aged from that
date If debtors arise on open positions the amounts due from clients are considered neither past due nor imparred
unless impairment is provided

Credit risk

The analysis of nerther past due nor impaired credit exposures in the following table excludes retail chient funds held
n segregated client money accounts or money market facihties established under the UK’s Financial Services
Authority (FSA) ‘CASS’ rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose jurisdiction the Group operates Under
these rules, chent money funds held with trust status are protected i the event of the nsolvency of the Group
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b) Client credit risk {continued)

The analysis of neither past due nor impaired credit exposures in the following table excludes retail chent funds held
in segregated client money accounts or money market facilities established under the UK's Financial Services
Authority (FSA) ‘CASS’ rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose junisdiction the Group operates Under
these rules, clent money funds held with trust status are protected in the event of the insolvency of the Group

Collateral held ot foir

tndwidually
impaired

Gross exposure

Allowance for
impairment

Past due but not
impaired

Ageing profile
0-3 months
Older

Neither past due
nor impaired

Credit rating
AAA
AA+

AA

AA-

A+

A

A-

BB+

B+

B

BBB+
BBB
BBB-
CcCC
Unrated

Total carrying
amount

Trade receivables — due

Trade recewvables - due

Cash and cash equivalents

from brokers from chents value
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
- - 10,082,758 10,709,921 - - - -
- - (9,716,013) (9,961,013) - - - -
- - 366,745 748,908 - - - -
- - 126,476 54,911 - - - -
- - 126,476 54,911 - - - -
- - - - - - 1,152,313 3,405,935
- - - - - - - 102,500
- 73,289,630 - - - 25,108,412 - -
54,838,684 2,523,924 - - 102,579 2,837,030 - 160,725
29,501,247 98,881,892 - - 51,725,145 68,887,236 21,756 9,184
91,385,148 90,110,569 - - 157,187,281 930,339 111,423 543,717
28,293,792 - - - - 179,899 429,423 204,572
- - - - 127,855 321,444 - 102,302
- - - - 91,866 - - -
- - - - - 72,901 - -
- - - - 49,181 - 212,926 313,111
- - - - 13,145 358,505 210,050
- 638,383 - - 71,386 115,681 313,879 228,118
- - - - 16,195 - - -
908,752 599,011 130,559 135,636 73,943 61,812 1,264,093 508,060
204,927,623 266,043,409 130,559 135,636 209,445,431 98,527,859 3,864,318 5,788,674
204,927,623 266,043,409 623,780 939,455 209,445,431 98,527,899 - -

Prepayments and other recewvables are alt unrated {2011 ali unrated)
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Financial risk management (continued)

b) Chent credit risk (continued)

imparment of trade receivables due from chents

The Company records specific impairments of trade recevables due from clients in a separate allowance account
Impairments are recorded where the Group determines that it 1s probable that it will be unable to collect all
amounts owing according to the contractual terms of the agreement There are no collective impairments taken,
and no other assets are considered impaired Below i1s a reconcibation of changes in the separate allowance account

during the period

Balance at beginning of year

Impairment loss for the year
- charge/ {credit) for the year
- recoveries

Foreign exchange

Write-offs

Balance at end of year

{m) Concentration nisk

2012 2011

£ £
9,961,020 11,924,786
1,635,013 (791,110)
(576,514) (950,305)
(636,537) 225,529
(666,969) (447,880)
9,716,013 9,961,020

Concentration risk 1s defined as all nisk exposures with a loss potential which 1s large enough to threaten the
solvency or the financial position of the Group In respect of financiat risk, such exposures may be caused by credit
nsk, market nsk hquidity or 2 combination or interaction of those risks

The following table analyses the Group’s credit exposures, at thew carrying amounts, by gecgraphical region and
excludes retail client funds held in segregated client money accounts or money market facilities established under
the UK’s Financia! Services Authonty (FSA} ‘CASS’ rules and similar rules of other regulators in whose junsdiction the

Group operates

Analysis of credit exposures at carrying amount by geographical segment

As at 31 May 2012

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade recevables - due from brokers
Trade recewvables — due from chients

Total financial assets

Rest of

K Ei
U urope Austraha World Total
£ £ £ £ £
39,824,025 98,907,252 69,823,495 890,659 209,445,431
71,162,350 71,306,181 20,741,086 41,718,006 204,927,623
262,569 141,392 111,197 108,622 623,780
111,248,944 170,354,325 90,675,778 42,717,287 414,996,834
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Financial risk management {continued)

(n) Concentration nsk (continued)

Rest of

UK Europe Australia World Total
As at 31 May 2011 £ £ £ £ £
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 27,346,748 29,148,447 39,295,547 2,737,157 98,527,899
Trade recewvables — due from brokers 76,724,294 134,190,517 31,491,511 23,637,087 266,043,409
Trade recewables = due from clients 107,663 640,788 115,430 75,574 939,455
Yotal financial assets 104,178,705 163,979,752 70,902,488 26,445,818 365,510,763

The Company’s largest credit exposure te any one indwvidual broker at 31 May 2012 was £55,145,000 [AA rated) or
27% of the exposure to all brokers (2011 £73,312,000, AA rated, 27%) Included in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company’s largest credit exposure to any bank at 31 May 2012 was £69,818,000 (A+ rated) or 33% of the exposure
to all banks (2011 £39,116,000, A+ rated, 31%) The Company has no significant exposure to any one particular
chent or group of connected clients

(v} Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the nisk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations ansing from its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets

Management of hquidity risk

Liquidity nisk 1s managed centrally and on a group-wide basis The Group's approach to managing hquidity 1s to
ensure it will have sufficient iquidity to meet its broker margin requirements and other financial habilities when
due, under both normal circumstances and stressed conditions The Group has carried out an Indvidual Liquidity
Adequacy Assessment (“ILAA”) during the year, and whilst this applies specifically to the Group’s FSA regulated
entities, it provides the context in which liquidity 1s managed on a continuous basis for the whole Group

The Group does not have any material hquidity mismatches with regard to hiqurdity maturity profiles due to the very
short-term nature of its financial assets and habilities  Liguidity risk can, however, anse as all individual chent funds
are required to be placed in segregated client money accounts or money market facilities {as previously discussed)
A result of this policy 1s that short-term liquidity ‘gaps’ can potentially arise in penods of very high client activity or
significant increases or falls in global financial market levels

During periods of significant market falls the Group will be required to fund margin payments to brokers prior to the
release of funds from segregation, and in periods of significant market increases or increased chient activity, the
Group will be required to fund higher margin requirements at brokers to hedge increased underlying client
posttions These additional requirements are funded from the Group’s own available cash resources while these
individual client positions are open, as individual chient funds remain in segregated client money bank accounts

In order to mitigate this and other liquidity nisks, the Group regularly stress tests its three-year liquidity forecast to
validate the correct level of committed unsecured bank facilities held At the year-end, these amounted to

£180 0 million (2011 £180 0 million} and ather than for testing purposes were not drawn upon during the current
nor proceeding financial year As well as the three-year iquidity forecast, the Group also produces more detailed
short-term hiquidity forecasts and detailed stress tests
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Financial nsk management {continued)

{w) Liguidity nisk {continued)

The key measure used by the Group for managing hguidity risk is the level of total available iquidity For this
purpose total available kquidity calculated as set out in the following table inclusive of undrawn committed facilities
Total available hquidity at each year-end was as follows

2012 2011
£m £m
{restated)
Own cash and uitle transfer funds 228,156 124,528
Amounts due from brokers 206,997 267,792
Add back/ {less) other amounts due from/ (to) cllentsm 12,520 {11,639)
Avatlable cash resources 448,073 380,681
Analysed as
Own funds 388,221 309,228
Title transfer funds 59,852 71,453
Available ligwmdity
Available cash resources 448,073 380,681
Less broker margin requirement (195,954) (217,360}
Net available cash 252,119 163,321
Less title transfer funds (59,852} {71,453}
Net own cash available 192,267 91,868
Of which declared as dividend (60,769) (53,051}
Committed banking famlmestz) 180,000 180,000
Total available hquidity {including facilities) 311,498 218,817

Urhe comparative amount has been restated to disclose ‘other amounts due from / (to) chents’ which represent
balances that will be transferred from the Group’s own cash into segregated client funds on the immediately
following working day in accordance the UK’s Financial Services Authority (FSA) ‘CASS’ rules and similar rules of
other regulators in whose junsdiction the Group operates

@braw down of the committed banking facilities 15 capped at 80% of the actual broker margin requirement on the
draw down date For example the actual committed facilities available for draw down at 31 May 2012 based on the
year end broker margin requirement of £196 0 million were £156 8 milhion  Available draw down of £156 8 rmullion
facility equates to total avallable liquidity as at 31 May 2012 of £288 3 million

The Group’s available cash resources enables the funding of large broker margin requirements when required - the
level of available cash resources at 31 May 2012 should be considered in ight the intra-year high broker margin
requirement of £277 1 milion, the continued growth of the business and the Group’'s commitment to segregation of
indmwdual clients money as well the final proposed 2012 dividend all of which draw upon available cash resources

In the Directors’ opimon the Group has sufficient iquid funds available to meet all operational requirements in the
event of a large market movement Liquidity management 1s also dependent on credit risk management previously
described
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Financial risk management (continued)
{v} Liqundity risk {continued)

In the Directors’ opinion the Company has suffictent hguid funds available to meet all operationa! requirements in
the event of a large market movement Liquidity management is also dependent on credit risk management
previously described

Derivative and non-dervative cash flows by remaining contractual maturity

The following tahles present the undiscounted cash flows recevable and payable {excluding interest payments) by
the Group under derivative and non-derivative financial assets and liabilities allocated to the earliest period in which
the Group can be required to pay although the remating contractual maturities are longer

Amounts payable on demand

As at 31 May 2012 Derivative Non-dervative Total
£ £ £
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 209,445,431 209,445,431
Trade recevables — due from brokers {10,843,109) 215,770,732 204,927,623
Trade recewables — due from clients - 623,780 623,780
{10,843,109) 425,839,943 414,996,834
Financral habilities
Trade payables — due to clients - {59,852,228} (59,852,228)
- (59,852,228} (59,852,228}
{10,843,109) 365,987,715 355,144,606

Derivative trade recervables and payables disclosed in the table above represent the Company’s open positions with
brokers and clients respectively Non-derivative trade receivables and payables disclosed in the table above
represent cash margin held at brokers, closed chient debtors, and chent trading margin held on deposit respectively
Derivative and non-derivative cash flows are presented alongside each other in the table above as they result from
the same underlying trading relationship and as the Group has both the legal right and intention to settle on a net
basis

Trade recewvables are disclosed as repayable on demand as when clhient positions are closed the corresponding
positions relating to the hedged position are closed with brokers Accordingly the Group releases cash margin, which
1s repaid by brokers to the Group on demand

Trade payables are disclosed in the table above as repayable on demand as positions can be closed at any time by
clients and can also be closed by the Company, in accordance with the Group’s margining rules If after closing a
position a chent is in surplus, then the amount cwing 1s repayable on demand by the Company
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{iv) Liquidity risk {continued}
Amounts payable on demand

As at 31 May 2011 Dervative Non-dervative Total
£ £ £
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 98,527,899 98,527,899
Trade recewables — due from brokers (5,056,054) 271,099,463 266,043,409
Trade recewvables — due from clients - 935,455 939,455
(5,056,054) 370,566,817 365,510,763
Financial frabiisties
Trade payables — due to clients - (56,423,773) (56,423,773)
- {56,423,773) (56,423,773}
(5,056,054) 314,143,044 309,086,990

Capital management and resources
Capital management

The Group Is supervised on a consohdated basis by the UK's Financial Services Authority (FSA) The Group's
subsidiaries in Australia, Japan, Singapore, South Africa and the United States, are also regulated Indiwvidual capital
requirements in these junisdictions are taken into account when managing the Group’s capital resources

The Group's regulatory capital resources management objective 1s to ensure that the Group comphes with the
regulatory capital resources requirement set by the FSA and other global regulators in jurisdictions in which the
Group's entities operate

The Group’s capital management policy aims to maximise returns on equity while maintaining a strong capital
position to enable the Group to take advantage of growth opportunities, whether organmic or by acquisttion The
Group does not seek to generate higher returns on equity by introducing leverage through, for example, the use of
long-term debt finance

The Group's 2011 ICAAP was approved by the Board in January 2012 There have been no capital requirement
breaches during the financial year The Group also regularly undertakes three-year stress and scenaro testing of its
main financial and operational risks to project its future capital and hquidity adequacy requirements

The Group’s ‘Pillar 3 Disclosures’ are published on its website www iggroup com and these provide additional
information on the Group’s enterpnise-wide nsk management framework and its management of regulatory capital
on a consolidated and solo entity basis

Capital resources

The Group had significant surplus regulatory capital resources over the regulatory capital resources requirement
throughout the year An analysis of the Company’s capital resources and capital resources requirement is provided
in the Directors’ statutory report

Subsequent events

On 17 July 2012, Andrew MacKay, announced his decision to step down from the Board with effect from 31 July
2012
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33. URtimate parent undertaking and controlling party
The immediate parent undertaking 1s Market Data Limited

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party 15 IG Group Holdings ple, a company incorporated in the
United Kingdom

IG Group Holdings ple 1s the parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings to consolidate these financial
statements at 31 May 2012 The consolidated financial statements of IG Group Holdings plc are available from
Cannon Bridge House, 25 Dowgate Hill, London ECAR 2YA
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